LAW OFFICE OF

ﬁ DAVID A. LUDDER ﬁ

A Professional Limited Liability Company

May 4, 2016

CERTIFIED MAIL
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

Hon. Mike Schmitz, Mayor
City of Dothan

P. O. Box 2128

Dothan, Alabama 36302

Re: Notice of Intent to File Suit under the Clean Water Act
Dear Mayor Schmitz:

Pursuant to the Clean Water Act 8 505, 33 U.S.C. § 1365, and 40 C.F.R. Part 135,
Subpart A, you are hereby notified that after the expiration of 60 days following service of this
notice, the Environmental Defense Alliance intends to file suit against the City of Dothan to
require compliance with NPDES Permit Nos. AL0072737 and AL0022764 and Clean Water Act
8 301(a), 33 U.S.C. § 1311(a).

. Violations
A Failure to properly operate and maintain

The City of Dothan was issued NPDES Permit No. AL0072737 for discharges of
pollutants (treated sanitary sewage) from the Dothan New Cypress Wastewater Treatment Plant
located at 2431 Helms Road, Dothan, Alabama, into Limestone Creek, a navigable water of the
United States. The City of Dothan was also issued NPDES No. Permit AL0022764 for
discharges of pollutants (treated sanitary sewage) from the Omussee Creek Wastewater
Treatment Plant located at 457 Jerry Drive, Dothan, Alabama, into Omussee Creek, a navigable
water of the United States. Part Il. A. 1. of these permits includes the following condition:

The Permittee shall at all times properly operate and maintain all facilities and
systems of treatment and control (and related appurtenances) which are installed
or used by the Permittee to achieve compliance with the conditions of the permit.
Proper operation and maintenance includes effective performance, adequate
funding, adequate operator staffing and training, and adequate laboratory and
process controls, including appropriate quality assurance procedures. This
provision requires the operation of backup or auxiliary facilities only when
necessary to achieve compliance with the conditions of the permit.
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The Environmental Defense Alliance alleges that the City of Dothan failed to properly
operate and maintain all facilities and systems of treatment and control (and related
appurtenances) which are installed or used by the City to achieve compliance with the conditions
of NPDES Permit Nos. AL0072737 and AL0022764 on the dates indicated in the attached tables.
These failures resulted in Sanitary Sewer Overflows of untreated sanitary sewage as described in
the attached tables.

B. Discharges without permit

Clean Water Act § 301(a), 33 U.S.C. 8 1311(a), prohibits the discharge of pollutants from
a point source into navigable waters of the United States without a National Pollutant Discharge
Elimination System permit.

The Environmental Defense Alliance alleges that the City of Dothan experienced Sanitary
Sewer Overflows that resulted in the discharge of untreated sanitary sewage from point sources
into navigable waters of the United States without a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination
System permit in violation of Clean Water Act § 301(a), 33 U.S.C. § 1311(a). These unlawful
discharges are described in the attached tables.

I1. Previous enforcement actions

On July 23, 2012, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency issued Administrative
Order on Consent No. CWA-04-2012-4780. The Order cited the City of Dothan for failure to
properly operate and maintain the wastewater collection systems that transport wastewater to the
Dothan New Cypress Wastewater Treatment Plant and Omussee Creek Wastewater Treatment
Plant resulting in Sanitary Sewer Overflows in violation of Part Il. A. 1. of NPDES Permit Nos.
ALO0072737 and AL0022764; and for discharges of Sanitary Sewer Overflows in navigable
waters of the United States without a permit in violation of Clean Water Act § 301(a), 33 U.S.C.
8 1311(a). The Order required the City of Dothan to implement capacity, management,
operation, and maintenance programs with the goal of achieving compliance with the NPDES
permits and the Clean Water Act. The Order, however, did not require compliance with Part II.
A. 1. of NPDES Permit Nos. AL0072737 and AL0022764 or cessation of all unpermitted
discharges of Sanitary Sewer Overflows into navigable waters of the United States.

On July 15, 2014, the United States of America, State of Alabama, and Alabama
Department of Environmental Management filed suit against the City of Dothan. Case No.
1:14-cv-00680 (M.D. Ala. July 15, 2014). The complaint alleged that the City of Dothan
discharged Sanitary Sewer Overflows without a permit in violation of Clean Water Act § 301(a),
33 U.S.C. § 1301(a); discharged pollutants in violation of the discharge limitations in NPDES
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Permit Nos. AL0072737 and AL0022764; failed to file noncompliance reports in violation of the
conditions of NPDES Permit Nos. AL0072737 and AL0022764; and failed to properly operate
and maintain its facilities and systems of treatment and control, and related appurtenances,
which are installed or used by the City to achieve compliance with the conditions of NPDES
Permit Nos. AL0072737 and AL0022764 in violation of the conditions of those permits.

On July 15, 2014, the United States of America, State of Alabama, Alabama Department
of Environmental Management, and City of Dothan filed with the Court a Joint Stipulation of
Settlement. The Settlement required that the City of Dothan pay a civil penalty. The Settlement,
however, did not require compliance with Part Il. A. 1. of NPDES Permit Nos. AL0072737 and
AL0022764 or cessation of all unpermitted discharges of Sanitary Sewer Overflows into
navigable waters of the United States. The Court approved the Joint Stipulation of Settlement on
September 22, 2014.

1. Sanctions

The Clean Water Act authorizes injunctive relief and civil penalties up to $37,500 per day
per violation. In addition, the Act authorizes the award of costs of litigation (including
reasonable attorney and expert witness fees) to any prevailing or substantially prevailing party,
whenever the court determines that such an award is appropriate. Suit may be avoided if these
violations have ceased before the expiration 60 days following service of this notice. Please
advise the undersigned of any measures which you may undertake which you contend have
permanently abated these violations before suit is filed.

Sincerely,

Lo bk

David A. Ludder
Attorney for
Environmental Defense Alliance

cc: Hon. Gina McCarthy, Administrator
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Avriel Rios Building
1200 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W.
Washington, DC 20460
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Hon. Heather McTeer Toney

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency-Region 4
61 Forsyth Street SW

Atlanta, GA 30303

Hon. Lance LeFleur, Director

Alabama Department of Environmental Management
P.O. Box 301463

Montgomery, AL 36130-1463

Environmental Defense Alliance
1449 Ridge Road

Birmingham, AL 35209

Tel. (205) 249-4743
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=i ELECTRONICALLY FILED
J 6/30/2016 9:39 AM
38-CV-2016-900281.00
CIRCUIT COURT OF
HOUSTON COUNTY, ALABAMA
CARLA H. WOODALL, CLERK

THE CIRCUIT COURT OF
HOUSTON COUNTY, ALABAMA

STATE OF ALABAMA exrd., )
LUTHER STRANGE, )
ATTORNEY GENERAL )
and the ALABAMA DEPARTMENT of )
ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT, )
)
Plaintiffs, ) Civil Action No.
) CV-2016-
v. )
)
CITY OF DOTHAN, )
)
)
Defendant. )
COMPLAINT
The Parties

1. The Attorney General is authorized by Ala. Code § 22-22A-5(1), 8§ 22-22-9(m),
§ 22-22A-5(12), and § 22-22A-5(18) (2006 Rplc. Vol.) to enforce the provisions of the Alabama
Water Pollution Control Act (hereinafter “AWPCA”), which is found at Ala. Code 8§ 22-22-1
through 22-22-14 (2006 Rplc. Vol.). Specifically, Ala. Code § 22-22A-5(18)b. (2006 Rplc.
Vol.) authorizes the Attorney General to bring a civil action for violation of permits issued under
the AWPCA and for unpermitted discharges of pollutants in violation of the AWPCA. In
addition, Ala. Code 8§ 22-22A-5(18)c., as amended, authorizes the Attorney General to recover
civil penalties for such permit violations and unpermitted discharges of pollutants, providing for
a maximum of $25,000.00 per violation. The Attorney General is authorized by Ala. Code § 36-
15-12 (2006 Rplc. Vol.) to institute and prosecute, in the name of the State, all civil actions and

other proceedings necessary to protect the rights and interests of the State.
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2. The Alabama Department of Environmental Management (hereinafter “the
Department” or “ADEM”) is a duly constituted department of the State of Alabama pursuant to
Ala. Code 8§ 22-22A-1 through 22-22A-17, as amended. Pursuant to Ala. Code § 22-22A-4(n)
(2006 Rplc. Voal.), the Department is the state agency responsible for the promulgation and
enforcement of water pollution control regulations in accordance with the Federal Water
Pollution Control Act, 33 U.S.C. 88 1251 to 1388. In addition, the Department is authorized to
administer and enforce the provisions of the AWPCA.

3. The City of Dothan (hereinafter “Defendant”) operates three waste treatment
facilities (hereinafter “WWTPs’) known as the Dothan Little Choctawhatchee WWTP, the
Dothan New Cypress Creek WWTP and the Omussee Creek WWTP. The Defendant discharges
pollutants from the Dothan Little Choctawhatchee WWTP, located at 412 Clearwater Drive, in
Dothan, Houston County, Alabama; the Dothan New Cyrpress Creek WWTP, located at 2431
Helms Road, in Dothan, Houston County, Alabama; and the Omussee Creek WWTP located at
457 Jerry Drive, in Dothan, Houston County, Alabama, into waters of the State.

Jurisdiction and Venue

4, The Court has jurisdiction and venue over this Complaint pursuant to Ala. Code §

22-22A-5(18)b. and § 22-22A-5(19) (2006 Rplc. Vol.).
General Allegations

5. Pursuant to the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (hereinafter
“NPDES’) program administered by ADEM and approved by the Administrator of the U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency pursuant to 8§ 402 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act,
33 U.S.C. § 1342, the Department reissued NPDES Permit Number AL0047465 (hereinafter “the

Dothan Little Choctawhatchee WWTP Permit”) to the Defendant on February 22, 2010, effective
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March 1, 2010. The Dothan Little Choctawhatchee WWTP Permit was modified on June 20,
2012. With the modification, Outfall 0011 was removed from the Permit. The Dothan Little
Choctawhatchee WWTP Permit was again reissued on February 1, 2016, effective February 1,
2016. The Dothan Little Choctawhatchee WWTP Permit establishes limitations and conditions
on the discharge of pollutants from a point source, described therein as Outfall 0012, into the
Little Choctawhatchee River, awater of the State.

6. Pursuant to the NPDES program administered by ADEM and approved by the
Administrator of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency pursuant to 8§ 402 of the Federal
Water Pollution Control Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1342, the Department reissued NPDES Permit Number
ALO0072737 (hereinafter “the Dothan New Cypress Creek WWTP Permit”) to the Defendant on
February 22, 2010, effective March 1, 2010. The Dothan New Cypress Creek WWTP Permit
was again reissued on January 22, 2016, effective February 1, 2016. The Dothan New Cypress
Creek WWTP Permit establishes limitations and conditions on the discharge of pollutants from a
point source, described therein as Outfall 0011, into Limestone Creek, awater of the State.

7.  Pursuant to the NPDES program administered by ADEM and approved by the
Administrator of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency pursuant to 8§ 402 of the Federal
Water Pollution Control Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1342, the Department reissued NPDES Permit Number
AL0022764 (hereinafter “the Omussee Creek WWTP Permit”) to the Defendant on August 6,
2006, effective September 1, 2006. The Omussee Creek WWTP Permit was again reissued on
October 26, 2011, effective November 1, 2011. The Omussee Creek WWTP Permit establishes
limitations and conditions on the discharge of pollutants from a point source, described therein as

Outfall 0011, into Omussee Creek, awater of the State.
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8. The NPDES Permits for the Dothan Little Choctawhatchee WWTP, the Dothan
New Cypress Creek WWTP, and the Omussee Creek WWTP require that the Defendant monitor
its discharges and submit periodic Discharge Monitoring Reports (hereinafter “DMRS’) to the
Department describing the results of the monitoring. The Permits also require that the Defendant
properly operate and maintain all facilities and systems of treatment and control which are
installed or used by the Defendant to achieve compliance with the conditions of the Permits.

9. Ala Code 822-22-9(i)(3) (2006 Rplc. Vol.) requires that a permit be obtained prior
to discharging any new or increased pollution into any water of the State. Between the July 2011
and June 2016 monitoring periods, the Defendant reported to the Department 189 unpermitted
discharges in the form of Sanitary Sewer Overflows (hereinafter “SSOs”) from the Dothan Little
Choctawhatchee waste treatment facility. The Dothan Little Choctawhatchee waste treatment
facility SSOs are listed in Attachment 1. Between the July 2011 and June 2016 monitoring
periods, the Defendant reported to the Department thirty-five SSOs from the Dothan New
Cypress Creek waste treatment facility. The Dothan New Cypress Creek waste treatment
facilitySSOs are listed in Attachment 2. Between the July 2011 and June 2016 monitoring
periods, the Defendant reported to the Department twenty-four SSOs from the Omussee Creek
waste treatment facility. The Omussee Creek waste treatment facility SSOs are listed in
Attachment 3.

10. Permit Condition I.A of the Dothan New Cypress Creek WWTP Permit requires
that discharges be limited and monitored as specified in the permit. DMRs submitted to the
Department by the Defendant indicate that the Defendant has discharged pollutants from the
aforementioned point source, Outfall Number 0011, to Limestone Creek in violation of the

limitations established in the Dothan New Cypress Creek WWTP Permit. The months the
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violations occurred along with the parameters violated are listed in Attachment 2.

11. Permit Condition I.A of the Omussee Creek WWTP Permit requires that discharges
be limited and monitored as specified in the permit. DMRs submitted to the Department by the
Defendant indicate that the Defendant has discharged pollutants from the aforementioned point
source, Outfall Number 0011, to Omussee Creek in violation of the limitations established in the
Omussee Creek WWTP Permit. The months the violations occurred along with the parameters
violated are listed in Attachment 3.

Count |

12.  Plaintiffs repeat, replead and incorporate by reference paragraphs 1 through 11,

above.
13.  Theabove violations are due to be abated by injunction.
Count 11
14. Plaintiffs repeat, replead and incorporate by reference paragraphs 1 through 13,
above.

15. Pursuant to Ala. Code § 22-22A-5(18), as amended, a civil penalty is due to be

assessed for the referenced violations.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs respectfully request that the Court:

A. Take jurisdiction over this matter.

B. Adjudge and declare that the Defendant violated the limitations, terms, and
conditions of the Dothan Little Choctawhatchee WWTP Permit, the Dothan New Cypress Creek
WWTP Permit, and the Omussee Creek WWTP Permit.

C. Adjudge and declare that the Defendant caused or alowed discharges of
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pollutants from its waste treatment facilities into waters of the State in violation of the limitations
set forth in the Dothan New Cypress Creek WWTP Permit and the Omussee Creek WWTP
Permit.
D. Adjudge and declare that Defendant caused or allowed unpermitted discharges of
pollutants from its waste treatment facilities.
E. Order the Defendant to take action to ensure that similar violations of the
AWPCA will not recur in the future.
F. Assess a civil penalty against the Defendant and in favor of Plaintiffs pursuant to
Ala. Code 88 22-22A-5(18)b. and c., as amended, for each and every unpermitted discharge and
violation of the Dothan Little Choctawhatchee WWTP Permit, the Dothan New Cypress Creek
WWTP Permit, and the Omussee Creek WWTP Permit aleged in this Complaint.
G. Tax the costs of this action against the Defendant.
H. Order such other relief that the Court deems proper.
Respectfully submitted,
&/ Robert D. Tambling

Robert D. Tambling (TAMO001)
Assistant Attorney General

ADDRESS OF COUNSEL:
Office of the Attorney General
501 Washington Avenue
Montgomery, AL 36130
Telephone: (334) 242-7445
Email: rtambling@ago.state.al.us




DOCUMENT 2

s/ Schuyler Espy

Schuyler Espy (KEAOQ9)
Assistant Attorney General

ADDRESS OF COUNSEL :

Alabama Department of Environmental Management
Office of General Counsel

P.O. Box 301463

Montgomery, AL 36130-1463

Telephone: (334) 271-7855

Fax: (334) 394-4332

Email: sespy@adem.aabama.gov




AlaFile E-Notice

38-CV-2016-900281.00
Judge: J. MICHAEL CONAWAY

To: ESPY SCHUYLER KEAT
sespy@adem.alabama.gov

NOTICE OF COURT ACTION

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF HOUSTON COUNTY, ALABAMA

STATE OF ALABAMA EX REL., LUTHER STRANGE, ATT GEN ET AL V. CITY OF DOT
38-CV-2016-900281.00

A court action was entered in the above case on 5/22/2017 1:55:24 PM

ORDER
[Filer: ]
Disposition: GRANTED
Judge: JMC
Notice Date: 5/22/2017 1:55:24 PM

CARLA H. WOODALL

CIRCUIT COURT CLERK
HOUSTON COUNTY, ALABAMA
P.O. DRAWER 6406

DOTHAN, AL, 36302

334-677-4859































































